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15 August 2011

Manager

Philanthropy and Exemptions Unit

Personal and Retirement Income Division

The Treasury

Langton Crescent

PARKES
 ACT 2600

Dear Sir/Madam,

Exposure Draft inserts for the Tax Laws Amendment (2011 Miscellaneous Measures) Bill (No. 1) 2011: tax exempt body “in Australia” requirements
I write to you in relation to the Exposure Draft for the Tax Laws Amendment (2011 Miscellaneous Measures) Bill (No. 1) 2011: tax exempt body “in Australia” requirements (Exposure Draft) and its accompanying explanatory memorandum on behalf of the Anglican Church of Australia (“ACA”). 

Introduction

This submission is made by the Standing Committee of the General Synod of the Anglican Church of Australia. The General Synod is the principal governing body of the National Church and is constituted under the Constitution of the Anglican Church of Australia and meets ordinarily every three years. The Standing Committee acts in the interim.

The Anglican Church of Australia is a community of Christians scattered across Australia. Our ambition is to serve Christ faithfully in the circumstances of our daily lives. The Church is organised into 23 dioceses grouped into 5 provinces or regions. As well as dioceses and parishes there are many different organisations in areas such as education, health, mission, social welfare and communications which are part of the Anglican Church. 

Our welfare organisations include Anglicare, Samaritans and Anglican Retirement Villages. There are around 145 Anglican schools in Australia, providing for more than 105,000 children.
Anglicare Australia is a National Church Network that provides services to children, young people, families, refugees and migrants, indigenous Australians, older people, the homeless and unemployed Australians. The 43 Anglicare member agencies provided services to over 512,340 persons in 2029 locations in 2008-2009. The annual expenditure totalled $624 million.

The Exposure Draft
We have considered the Exposure Draft for the Tax Laws Amendment (2011 Miscellaneous Measures) Bill (No. 1) 2011: tax exempt body “in Australia” requirements (Exposure Draft) and its accompanying explanatory memorandum. and have reviewed and contributed to the submission of the Anglican Church Diocese of Sydney (copy submitted by the Sydney Diocese separately).

The Anglican Church of Australia is in agreement with the submissions made by the Anglican Diocese of Sydney and supports the points raised in that submission, which are in summary:

1. We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the Exposure Draft for the Tax Laws Amendment (2011 Miscellaneous Measures) Bill (No. 1) 2011: tax exempt body “in Australia” requirements (Exposure Draft) and its accompanying explanatory memorandum. 

2. While we broadly support the policy considerations of the Government in the Exposure Draft, we are concerned that the means proposed for achieving these policy outcomes are not appropriate and will result in bona fide Australian organisations losing their entitlement to endorsement as tax exempt or deductible gift recipient entities.
3. We understand that the ultimate aim of the Government in carrying out the proposed reforms to the charities and not-for-profit sector is to improve accountability and reduce red tape. In light of this, we submit that the Government should approach all elements of the proposed reforms as part of a cohesive package, rather than as a number of separate consultations, exposure drafts and bills.

4. In relation to the specific amendments proposed by the Exposure Draft: 

a. We are deeply concerned that, as presently drafted, the Exposure Draft will result in institutions which are currently prescribed under 50-50(d) of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Cth) (ITAA 97) losing their income tax exempt status. The proposed section 50-51(3) should be amended to ensure that institutions which have a physical presence in Australia but incur their expenditure and pursue their objects principally overseas can continue to be prescribed as exempt from the “in Australia” requirements as reformulated under the proposed section 50-50(2).

b. There are a number of problems with the restrictions on making donations under proposed subsections 30-18(3) and 50-50(2)(c). An obvious problem is that these restrictions would prevent charities from making cash payments to individuals in need. These problems warrant the proposed restrictions being withdrawn at this time and reconsidered after the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission (ACNC) has been established and given the opportunity to form a view about the necessity of the restrictions and, if necessary, how they should be framed. 

c. The Exposure Draft creates a “once for all time” type test in a number of areas. The prospect of disendorsement should only arise after repeat breaches of a material nature. 

d. Distributions of gifts or government grants which, under section 50-75 of ITAA 97, are currently disregarded in determining whether an organisation is “in Australia” should continue to be disregarded despite the reformulation of the “in Australia” test, particularly in determining whether the organisation has donated moneys to an organisation that is not income tax exempt under proposed section 50-50(2)(c). 

e. The requirement that an organisation comply with all the requirements of its governing rules, without limitation to the objects, non-profit and dissolution clauses, is unworkable and may be unnecessary.

f. The requirement that an organisation use its income and assets solely to pursue the purposes for which it was established is unnecessary in view of the existing requirement for a non-profit clause in an organisation’s governing rules and the proposed requirement in section 50-50(3)(b) to comply with its governing rules. It is also unclear how this requirement will interact with the proposed removal of tax concessions in respect of retained profits from the unrelated commercial activities of not-for-profit entities. 

g. Greater clarity is required in relation to the holistic consideration of whether an organisation is “in Australia” and the relevant factors and relative weights to be provided to each factor. Only the Australian structure and operations of an organisation should be taken into account in determining whether the “in Australia” requirement is met.

h. The proposed statutory definition of “not-for-profit entity” may preclude all charitable funds and some charitable institutions which engage in commercial activity from being income tax exempt entities. We recommend that the Common Law definition is retained or the proposed definition modified to include reference to private profit or gain..

In regards to specific questions regarding the technical content of this submission can I ask that you contact the Diocesan Secretary of the Anglican Church Diocese of Sydney, Mr Robert Wicks, whose contact details are:

Mr Robert Wicks

Diocesan Secretary

Anglican Church Offices

PO Box Q190

QVB Post Office NSW 1230

Phone: (02) 92651671

Fax: (02) 92651634

Email: rjw@sydney.anglican.asn.au

We very much appreciate the opportunity to work with the Australian Government on improving the regulation of the charities and not-for-profit sector and reiterate our support for the general thrust of the package of reforms recently announced by the Government.

Yours sincerely,

Martin Drevikovsky

General Secretary

Direct Telephone:  +61 (0)2 82672701

Mobile Telephone:  +61 (0)418 476937

Email:  generalsecretary@anglican.org.au
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